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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Upson House, built in 1847 by Dr. Marcus A. Franklin, is -an excep-
tionally fine example of the full-blown Greek Revival style house.

Facing south on its tree shaded, sloping lot, this two story, five bay
house with its two story Doric columned portico is of brick, stuccoed to
resemble stone. The house exhibits a frequent style combination of the
The entablature, also of
stuccoed brick, is accented by a molding halfway up and finished by a pro-
jecting wooden cornice; it becomes a parapet along the sides. Structured
A belt course marks the
level of the second floor. The tall first floor windows are triple hung
sash with six panes per sash while the second floor has only double hung
sash. Side and.transom lights surround the front door which is framed in
pilasters. Side lights also define the window above the front door. A hip
roof is visible above the entablature as are two interior end chimneys.

period, an Ionic entablature above Doric columns.

close to the ground, this house has no basement.

There have been no external alterations on the main portion of the
house; only rear additions were made in the late 19th century. After
Stephen Upson bought the house in 1885, he had the kitchen rolled up to the
‘ The shallow wooden porches
attached to the house at each level in back were deepened and the lower one
enclosed. The two wings he added, at each end of the former back porches,
include, in addition to the kitchen, a back stairs, baths, one bedroom

house, attaching it behind the butler's pantry.

downstairs and three upstairs.

In the spacious rooms of the original portion, the downstairs ceilings
are over 12 feet high. The original woodwork detail is simple, a pilaster
theme employed both at the fireplaces and in the door jambs. A broad arch
marks the beginning of the stairs in the wide hall.
ceiling medallions; only one of simple concentric circles is in the hall.

Mr. Upson had installed the parquet floors of quarter-sawed oak with
inlaid borders of mahogany and rosewood. The fireplaces were modified to
take grates and glazed ceramic tile in delicate blue, green, or cream were
added around arched openings. The wood of the staircase is mahogany and the
doorknobs and keyhole covers are silver. Mr., Upson also added the china
closet in the dining room and the brass wall lamps for gas in the drawing
room, The original wide pine flooring can be seen in the enclosed back

porxch.

There are no elaborate
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The. city of Athens, Georgia, has long been recognized as having out-
standing Greek Revival structures. Of these, the Upson House is one of the
best éxamples'of the' Greek Revival mansion, and yet at the same time it has
unusual structural features. '

As a representative structure of Athens' array of great Greek Revival
mansions, the Upson House is typical with its four room central hall plan,
its full, two-story Doric portico and lighted, trabeated doorway; however,
its details of roof design and proportion avoid the usual horizontal
emphasis. The high hip roof, visible above the entablature together with
the narrow, triple hung, sash windows add to the verticality of the struc-
ture. Other .features that make it unusual are its brick stuccoed facade
made to resemble stone and the absence of a hanging balcony and basement;
the house was constructed directly on ground level, without benefit of a
basement or raised area.

Although the date of 1840 and the names of Leonidas Franklin or
Gazaway D. Lamar have been cited as the building date and builder, research
for this nomination lead to another conclusion. The house was built in
1847 for Dr., Marcus A. Franklin.

The lot on which the house was built was part of the Oliver H. Prince
tract. Prominent in public life in Macon, in law and in the promotion of
railroads, Prince retired to Athens and in 1836 bought a tract of over 450
acres west of town. He died in a shipwreck off North Carolina in October
1837. 1In 1846, the administrator of his estate had the land resurveyed and
offered for sale in smaller tracts; lot 4, of 36 acres, the site of the
Upson House, was bought for $370 by William M. Morton on July 29, 1846.
The price shows no house was on the lot. On October 1, 1846, Morton sold
the lot to Marcus A Franklin for $5.00. The 1850 census states that
Franklin, by then in Macon, was a physician; perhaps the lot was a gift of
gratitude. In April 1848, already in Macon, Franklin sold the parcel to
Gazaway D. Lamar for $5,750. Thus a comparison of the 1846 and the 1848
prices leads to the conclusion that the house was built in 1847 for Dr.
Franklin. (The Leonidas Franklin mentioned above, who gave his occupation
in the 1850 census as "miner," was in 1848 the neighbor on the eastern
bounds of the property.)

Owners after Dr. Marcus A. Franklin include Gazaway D. Lamar of Macon
(continued)




Clarke County Courthouse - deed recoxds. -
Cooper, Patricia I., Personal inspection.and interviews with. occupant
Louise Upson Foss, January-Feb. 1973.
Cooper, Patricia I., Presented lst draft of National Register form; on file
at Georgia Historical Commission.
Macgregor, Elizabeth Z., Georgia Historical Commission, Consultant.
Northen, William J., Men of Mark in Georgia (Atlanta: A.B. Caldwell, 1910).
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8. Significance

as trustee for Mary Ann Lamar, wife of Henry G. Lamar; James Long, father of
Crawford W. Long, the physician who first used ether as an anesthetic; and
the family of Stephen Upson who bought the house in 1885.*

Currently the Stephen Upson house is a property held in trust for the
benefit of Louise Upson Foss (and her heirs); Paul Hicks, Paul Hicks, Jr., and
Louise Hicks Crispin, all heirs of Mathilde Upson Hicks; Stephen Lumpkin Upson
(and his heirs); and Marie Upson Foil (and her heirs). The trustees who have
full and unrestricted authority to act in the sale of the property are Marie
Upson Foil and Stephen Lumpkin Upson, in whose names title to the property is
recorded as trustees. However, the Upson family, for the first time in five
generations, is beginning to live outside of Georgia with the advent of a new
generation, and the 6.5 acres on which the Upson house sits is beginning to be
eyed by business men and developers as a highly desirable and very valuable
site for a medical-center or business-office complex, since the surrounding
area along Prince Avenue has been zoned for business and has several high
quality office buildings there already. Recently, the family was offered an
attractive price for the acreage but is most interested in finding some means
of preserving the house and property intact.

* - Stephen Cummins .\Upson, was born in Lexington, .Georgia.on Nowvember 9, 1823
and died in Athens, Georgia on May 31, 1914. He entered Yale in 1838 where

he graduated with a B.A. degree in 1841. He studied medicine in New York in
1843-1844. Preferring law, he studied with Chief Justice Joseph Henry Lumpkin
of Georgia and also at the University of Paris, France. He practiced law in
both New York City and Lexington, Georgia, was admitted to the Georgia Supreme
Court in 1846, and in 1885 removed to Athens, Georgia where he had purchased
what has since been known as the Stephen Upson house. (His father, also
Stephen Upson, practiced law in Lexington, Oglethorpe County, Georgia. Upson
County is named for the father).
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